ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2013
9:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senat or Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 12

"An Act relating to state and public entity procurenent,
including the State Procurenent Code, procurenent preferences,
contract awards, the use of small procurenent provisions for
certain amounts of |eased space, the Al aska business |icense
requi renent for Al aska bidder and other procurenent preferences,
the proof of registration of construction contract bidders and
of ferors, the establishnment and mai ntenance of |ists of persons
who want to provide supplies or services to the state, state
agencies, and state instrunentalities, electronic bids and
proposals, the chief procurenment officer, small procurenents,
and witings; relating to the nmeaning of 'Al aska bidder'; and
providing for an effective date."

- MOVED SB 12 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 12

SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C PROCURENENT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) FAI RCLOUGH

01/16/13 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/11/13

01/16/ 13 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/16/13 (S) STA, FIN

02/ 05/ 13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- February 5, 2013



SENATOR ANNA FAI RCLOUGH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SB 12.

LAURA Pl ERRE, staff

Senat or Anna Fai rcl ough

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information regarding SB 12.

VERNON JONES, Chief Procurenent O ficer

D vi sion of General Services

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented informati on on SB 12.

SCOIT THORSQN, representing hinself
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 12.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9: 00: 19 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Coghill, Gessel, and Chair
Dyson. Senator Stedman was excused.

SB 12- PUBLI C PROCUREMENT

9: 00: 30 AM
CHAI R DYSON announced that SB 12 was before the commttee.

9:01: 38 AM
SENATOR ANNA FAI RCLOUGH, sponsor of SB 12, introduced the bill
She read fromthe sponsor statenent:

Before you is Senate Bill 12, an effort and proposa
to nodify Alaska's snall procurenent code definition.
It clarifies Alaska business license requirenents,

stating that a bidder nust have a business |license at
the time the bid is open, otherwi se you do not qualify
for the Alaska bidder's preference. This bil

increases a threshold under which a state agency nmay
use in the informal procurenent process from $50, 000
to $100,000 for goods and services and from $100, 000

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2013



to $200,000 for construction. It changes the small
procurenent |ease base threshold from 3,000 square
feet to 7,000 square feet. It allows for the
submi ssion of electronic bids, nodernizing our system
It elimnates an outdated vendor |ist. The departnent
handles this currently on line. It nakes application
of the preferences that are currently spread
t hroughout state statute to one section and uniform
It clarifies what preferences can be cunulative and
t hose that cannot be conbi ned.

CHAI R DYSON asked for clarification of Senator Fairclough' s |ast
st at enent .

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH expl ai ned that currently there are tinmes when
people in the procurenent process are requesting procurenent
officers to calculate a bid at each |evel under each preference.
The bill changes this to say that one calculation will be done
if preferences can be stacked. Previously, there was a
di sagreenent on the interpretation of preferences, since they
were located in different parts of the statute. The bill pulls
all statutes that discuss preference under one statute and sets
out a process by which preferences can be conbi ned.

CHAI R DYSON requested returning to that itemlater on.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH continued to explain that SB 12 changes the
pay for the Chief Procurenent Oficer froma range 27 to a range
25. The administration is splitting this position so the Chief
Procurenent O ficer is no longer the Director of the Division of
General Services.

She stated that, collectively, these changes streamine the

procurenent process for the agency and, in the end, wll benefit
the state by allowi ng enough tinme to really investigate the cost
benefit of Jlarger procurenents. It wll also benefit rural

Al aska by allowing nore to take part in the small procurenent
process.

9: 04: 35 AM
LAURA PIERRE, staff, Senator Anna Fairclough, explained the
sections of the bill. She said Section 1 updates a citation to

reflect the renunbering of a preference. Section 2 anends the
| ocal agricultural preference to grant a seven percent cost
preference to the qualifying bid, rather than to the | ow bid.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 3- February 5, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI understood that SB 12 is the sanme bill that
canme out of the Senate State Affairs Commttee |ast year, except
for the range change.

M5. Pl ERRRE agr eed.

CHAIR DYSON said he was intrigued by all the preferences to
instate residents. He wondered if there was a scoring nmethod in
pl ace.

SENATOR FAlI RCLOUGH suggested M. Jones address this issue.

9:07: 10 AM
VERNON JONES, Chief Procurenment Oficer, D vision of GCeneral
Ser vi ces, Depart ment of Adm ni strati on, descri bed t he

preferences and their value. The local agricultural preference
currently says "only agricultural products harvested in the
state shall be purchased when priced no nore than seven percent
above product harvested outside the state.” Currently, the
eval uator nust go through the process of determning the |Iow bid
and figuring out what seven percent of that is, and subtracting
that nunber from the bid wth the qualifying agricultura
preference. SB 12 would sinplify that process and award a seven
percent preference. The goal of SB 12 is to sinplify and
clarify.

CHAI R DYSON assuned that businesses would be bidding against an
out si de provi der.

MR. JONES said yes. He noted that the main preference is the
five percent Al aska bidder preference contained in AS 36.30.321
He related that many of the other preferences require the bidder
to qualify for the Al aska bidder preference.

He said that the enploynent program preference is also found in
AS 36. 30. 321.

CHAI R DYSON asked if that preference was for enploying Al askans.

MR. JONES explained that it was for enploying devel opnentally
di sabl ed enpl oyees - a 15 percent preference. There is also the
di sabl ed bidder preference, at 10 percent, contained in AS
36.33.21. He noted that preferences could be conbined such as
with the 5 percent Al aska bidder and 10 percent disabled bidder
preferences. He pointed out that SB 12 elimnates the "enpl oyers
of disabl ed" preference because it is seldom used and sonetines

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- February 5, 2013



msused. Only two bidders and tw individuals have ever
benefitted fromthat preference.

9:11:41 AM
MR. JONES spoke of the Al aska veterans preference at 5 percent
contained in AS 36.33.21. In order to qualify for the veterans'
preference, a person mnmust first qualify for the Al aska bidder
preference. A disabled veteran would qualify for a 20 percent
pr ef er ence.

CHAIR DYSON asked if there was a disadvantaged mnority
pref erence.

MR. JONES replied that Al aska does not have such a preference
it is a federal preference, such as when federal funds are used
to build highways. The state is not allowed to apply residency
preferences, but is required to apply federal preferences.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there are any preferences for Al aska Native
Cor por ati ons.

MR. JONES stated that the state has no Al aska Native Corporation
pref erences.

CHAI R DYSON asked if that preference exists when federal noney
is involved in a project.

MR. JONES replied that it depends on what restrictions acconpany
the project - if it has strings attached. It also depends on the
grant requirenents.

CHAIR DYSON said that a lot of Native Corporations have a
security-providing business. He asked if a preference would be
given for that business only under a federal grant.

MR. JONES sai d yes.

9:14: 17 AM

MR. JONES informed the commttee that the rest of the
preferences are for actual products bid. These do not require an
Al aska bidder preference. For exanple, the application for
forest, agricultural, and fisheries products preferences are
being sinplified in SB 12.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  nentioned constitutional limts for in-
state versus out-of-state preference. He assunmed that a 7

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 5, 2013



percent preference was constitutional. He asked what the outer
limt of preference percentage was.

MR. JONES replied that the state has been challenged only once
in twenty years. The Alaska Oferers Preference, a 10 percent
overall preference, not in statute, but in regulation, was
chal l enged. It was challenged in court and the case was dropped.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked where the 7 percent nunber cones
from

MR. JONES did not know. He said the legislature decided on that
nunber at the tine the statute was witten.

9:16: 36 AM

MR JONES said the rest of the preferences are the Al aska
product preferences, <class 1, 2, and 3, contained in AS
36. 30.330. The difference between the classes is the percentage
that is manufactured or built in Alaska. Cass 1 is 25 percent
or nore, class 2 is 50 percent or nore, and class 3 is 75
percent or nore, corresponding to a 4 percent, 6 percent, or 8
percent preference. He explained that you can't conbine an
Al aska product preference and an agricultural preference. He
related that Al aska has a total of 13 preferences, sonme of which
are not contained in SB 12. Al aska has the highest nunber of
preferences of any state.

9:18:12 AM
MR. JONES nentioned that the bill sinplifies the qualifications
for t he disability pr ef erence. Currently, Vocat i onal

Rehabilitati on manages the qualification process and is required
under statute to evaluate each case individually. He gave an
exanple of a veteran who produces a copy of discharge papers
that show the Veteran Adm nistration's qualification of a 90
percent disability. The Vocational Rehabilitation Ofice nmnust
still speak to that person's doctor for verification. Senate
Bill 12 woul d simplify t hat by al | owi ng Vocat i ona
Rehabilitation to request a copy of the VA s determ nation or
other third party qualifications.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there were limts on stacking preferences.

MR. JONES provided an exanple of a person who is an Al aska
resident receiving a 5 percent bidder preference, a 10 percent
disability preference, and a 5 percent veteran preference, which
would result in the highest possible personal preference of 20
percent. If that person was also offering a product, they could

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 6- February 5, 2013



al so get additional preferences, depending on where the product
is manufactured and whether it is an Al aska product.

MR. JONES pointed out that the preferences "all go to cost."” In
a Request for Proposal (RFP) situation, the preference is not
entirely based on cost, but also on other factors. For RFP's
there is an additional preference in regulation that is called
the Alaska O ferers Preference, which provides for a 10 percent
pr ef er ence.

CHAIR DYSON asked if that preference includes contracts for
personal servi ces.

MR JONES said that is what it is intended for.

M5. PIERRE continued with the sectional analysis. She said
Section 3 anends the local fisheries preference to grant a seven
percent cost preference to the qualifying bid, rather than to
the low bid. Section 4 would not allow soneone to receive an
agricultural or fisheries preference in addition to the Al aska
products preference. Section 5 anmends the salary of the Chief
Procurenment O ficer. Sections 6 - 10 are renunbering sections.

She explained that Section 11 increases the threshold limt for
smal|l procurenments for |eased space from 3,000 square feet to
7,000 square feet.

CHAI R DYSON asked if any commttee nenbers have any questions on
a specific section.

9:23:26 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL asked about the fiscal note. She inquired since
t he enpl oyee category is reduced, would the cost to the state be
reduced. She suggested it would be a negative fiscal note.

MR. JONES replied that it is very difficult to gage the value
and the cost to the state of these preferences. The state does
not have an automated procurenent systemto track costs.

SENATOR G ESSEL asked about the reduction in salary for the
Procurenment O ficer.

MR. JONES explained that prior to 2002 the Division of Cenera
Services had two positions, a Director and a Chief Procurenent
O ficer. These positions have since been conbined. The bill adds
back the Director position using funds currently budgeted so
there is no additional cost or savings.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- February 5, 2013



CHAIR DYSON said it elimnates a conflict of interest.

9: 25: 33 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI recalled that preference revisions have
been controversi al in the past. He conplinmented Senator

Fairclough for elimnating many of the concerns. He asked if
anyone opposes SB 12.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH stated support by the Al aska State Chanber of
Commerce and others. Only the two people whose preferences are

elimnated are opposed. She thought that, in the past, confusion
over the revisions caused sonme concern. She enphasized that the
preferences are not changing; however, the bill now clarifies

how the preferences are stacked and how to better calculate the
pr ef er ences.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked about if the inmmediate effective date can
be acconpl i shed.

SENATOR FAI RCLOUGH replied that there is transition |anguage in
Section 13, page 29.

SENATOR COGHI LL requested nore information about the date for
new qualifiers. He wondered if the Alaska preference requires
regul ati on changes.

9:28: 24 AM
MR. JONES did not think there would be an issue with regulation
changes. The statute can be inplemented right away. Sone

regulations will need to be adjusted or clarified later on. For
exanple, the threshold for small, informal procurenents has been
doubl ed. The different |levels of conpetition required under that
smal|l procurenent threshold are contained in regulations and
will need to be adjusted upwards.

9:29:40 AM

SCOTT THORSQN, representing hinself, testified in support of SB
12. He believed that the bill wll help residents work nore

effectively with agencies because it has clarified the rules of
bi ddi ng. He commended Senator Fairclough and M. Jones for their
wor K.

CHAI R DYSON asked which preference M. Thorson qualifies for.

MR. THORSON said the Al aska bi dder preference.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 8- February 5, 2013



9:31:48 AM

CHAI R DYSON commented that this bill is the kind of |egislation
that the legislature should be dealing with. He said additions
to existing laws are often inserted in illogical ways. He

commended Senator Fairclough and M. Jones for their efforts.

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report SB 12, | abeled 28-LS0222\ N, from
commttee with individual recomendations and the attached zero
fiscal note. There being no objection, SB 12 was reported from
Senate State Affairs Standing Conmittee.

9:33:13 AM

There being no further business to cone before the committee,
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee at 9:33 a.m

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 9- February 5, 2013



